# EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL COMMITTEE MINUTES

Committee: Licensing Sub-Committee Date: 3 October 2013

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Time: 6.30 - 6.55 pm

High Street, Epping

Members
Present:

Mrs P Smith (Chairman), P Keska and A Mitchell MBE

**~**..

Other Councillors:

Apologies:

Officers R Perrin (Democratic Services Assistant), N Clarke (Licensing Officer) and

**Present:** L Cole (Legal Services Officer)

#### 70. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct.

#### 71. PROCEDURE FOR THE CONDUCT OF BUSINESS

The Sub-Committee noted the agreed procedure for the conduct of business, and the terms of reference.

# 72. MARTINS THE NEWSAGENTS, 273-277 HIGH STREET, EPPING, ESSEX, CM16 4DA

The three Councillors that presided over this item were Councillors P Smith, A Mitchell and P Keska. The Chairman welcomed the participants and requested that they introduce themselves to the Sub-Committee. In attendance on behalf of the application were Anne-Marie Taylor, the applicant's solicitor and Pauline Tait, the Area Manager. There were no other people present. The Chairman then introduced the Members and Officers present, and outlined the procedure that would be followed for the determination of the application.

#### The Application before the Sub-Committee

The Legal Officer informed the Sub-Committee that a variation of a premises licence for Martins the Newsagents, 273-277 High Street, Epping had been received along with representations from interested parties. The variation had requested permission to:

To supply alcohol from 06:00 to 22:00 Monday to Sunday.

Following receipt of the application, the Council had received representations from:

- Essex Police:
- One representations from local residents;
- Essex County Fire & Rescue Service;
- Children's Safeguarding Service; and

Essex County Council Trading Standards.

#### Presentation of the Applicant's Case

Ms Taylor advised the Sub-Committee that the applicant wished to extended their opening hours and accordingly the licensing hours to 22:00 Monday to Sunday. The store already had a premises license granted in 2007 and so all the relevant conditions were already in place. In relation to the application the applicant had approached the police and no concerns had been raised.

The applicant had upgraded their 'Challenge 21' policy to 'Challenge 25' and had CCTV in the store. Employees selling alcohol were prompted by the tills to ID the person purchasing alcohol and to record the information taken, whether that was a sale, required ID or a refusal. If ID or a refusal were made then the employee would have to record the ID used or a description of the person trying to the purchase the alcohol would be made on the tills. All staff were required to be trained a minimum of three times a year and if the Area Manager felt that certain periods of the year were more likely for purchases of alcohol, she would advise the stores. The applicant also employed an external company to complete test purchases through the year, which if failed could result in dismissal to the member of staff, therefore reinforcing the importance to the employee. The previous application also conditioned that two members of staff were also required.

Ms Taylor advised that to date the store had received no complaints and the objections received were not supported with any evidence.

#### Questions for the Applicant from the Sub-Committee

Councillor Keska asked how long the CCTV was kept. Mrs Tait advised that it was held for 60 days and sent directly to head office. The store could only copy a recording with the authority of head office, although stills could be printed off the recordings.

Councillor Mitchell enquired about the training of staff. Mrs Tait advised that as a minimum staff would be trained three times a year.

Councillor Smith enquired about the refusal log and whether they knew how many refusals took place per day. Mrs Tait advised that the tills automatic recorded the sales of alcohol and refusals. The tills requested ID on a number of other products such as cigarettes, solvents and magazines, along side alcohol which normally resulted in one person being refused daily.

#### Questions from Objectors to the Applicant

There were no objectors present.

#### Closing Statement from the Applicant

Ms Taylor requested that the variation be granted as Martins has complied with the licensing objectives and although concerns had been raised they could not necessarily be attributed to the premises. The police had no objections to the application and the applicant just wished to marry up the opening times with the premise license.

#### Consideration of the Application by the Sub-Committee

The Sub-Committee retired to consider the application. They received no advice from officers.

## **RESOLVED:**

That the application for a premises license for be granted subject to the existing conditions on the license.

## 73. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

The Sub-committee noted that there were no items of business on the agenda that necessitated the exclusion of the public and press from the meeting.

**CHAIRMAN**